
RELIABILITY | RESILIENCE | SECURITY 

Agenda 
Corporate Governance And Human Resources 
Committee  
May 8, 2024 | 8:15-8:45 a.m. Eastern 

In-Person (Board, MRC, NERC Staff ONLY) 

NERC DC Office 
1401 H Street NW, Suite 410 
Washington, D.C. 20005  

Virtual Attendees 
Webinar Link: Join Meeting 
Attendee Password: Day1May82024 (32916298 from phones) 
Audio Only: 1-415-655-0002 US | 1-416-915-8942 Canada | Access Code: 2310 963 8050 

Committee Members 
George S. Hawkins - Chair 
Jane Allen 
Robert G. Clarke 
Larry Irving 
Suzanne Keenan 
Colleen Sidford 
Kenneth W. DeFontes, Jr.  – Ex Officio 

Introduction and Chair’s Remarks 

NERC Antitrust Compliance Guidelines 

Agenda Items 
1. Minutes –  Approve

a. February 14, 2024 Open Meeting*

2. Board of Trustees Annual Evaluation Results* – Review

3. People and Culture* – Update

a. Connection and Culture

4. Other Matters and Adjournment

*Background materials included.

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnerc.webex.com%2Fnerc%2Fj.php%3FMTID%3Dm986d68fbe11c1a8af2e1a1e3b1dd9284&data=05%7C02%7CTiffany.Washington%40nerc.net%7C9526871cf29241e5b45908dc65370c49%7Ca2d34bfabd5b4dc39a2e098f99296771%7C0%7C0%7C638496534317614385%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3yn7%2FxieVxxeOAnT%2FXKfbzF7I7W6CcyqDo6vIIG6Mro%3D&reserved=0
https://www.nerc.com/comm/PCGC/Documents/NERC_Antitrust_Compliance_Guidelines.pdf


RELIABILITY | RESILIENCE | SECURITY

DRAFT Minutes  
Corporate Governance and Human Resources 
Committee Meeting 
February 14, 2024| 11:00 a.m.-11:30 a.m. Central 

The Houstonian Hotel Houston 
111 North Post Oak Lane 
Houston, TX 77024 

Chair Suzanne Keenan called to order a duly noticed meeting of the Corporate Governance and Human Resources 
Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Trustees (“Board”) of the North American Electric Reliability 
Corporation (“NERC” or the “Company”) on February 14, 2024, at 11:00 a.m. Central, and a quorum was declared 
present.  

Present at the meeting were: 

Committee Members Board Members 
Suzanne Keenan, Chair Robin E. Manning 
Jane Allen Jim Piro 
Robert G. Clarke Kristine Schmidt 
George S. Hawkins Colleen Sidford 
Larry Irving James B. Robb, NERC President, and Chief Executive Officer 
Susan Kelly 
Kenneth W. DeFontes. Jr., ex officio 

NERC Staff 
Tina Buzzard, Assistant Corporate Secretary  
Manny Cancel, Senior Vice President and CEO of the E-ISAC 
Candice Castaneda, Senior Counsel 
Kelly Hanson, Senior Vice President, and Chief Administrative Officer 
Mark Lauby, Senior Vice President, and Chief Engineer 
Lauren Perotti, Assistant General Counsel 
Sonia Rocha, Senior Vice President, General Counsel, and Corporate Secretary 
Liz Saunders, Vice President, People and Culture 

NERC Antitrust Compliance Guidelines 
Ms. Keenan directed the participants’ attention to the NERC Antitrust Compliance Guidelines included in the 
advance agenda package. 

Chair’s Remarks 
Ms. Keenan welcomed participants to the meeting. She thanked the Committee and NERC Board for their 
engagement during her time as Committee Chair, as well as for NERC staff for their support. She reported that the 
Committee met in closed session on December 11, 2023 and February 13, 2024 to discuss personnel and 
compensation matters, succession planning, and ways to improve the effectiveness of the Board going forward. She 



 

Draft Minutes – CGHRC Open Meeting – February 14, 2024 2 

noted that the Committee’s agenda for this meeting included approving charter changes, and she expressed her 
appreciation for the work of the industry volunteers that work on these and other NERC committees. She 
concluded by noting the Board’s commitment to continuous process improvement.  

Minutes 
Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the minutes of the August 16, 2023 meeting as 
presented at the meeting. 
 
Board Committee and Board of Trustees Annual Evaluations and Committee Mandate Process 
Ms. Perotti reviewed the proposed Board of Trustees committee and full Board annual evaluation and committee 
mandate review processes for 2024. First, she reviewed the proposed committee and full Board evaluation 
questionnaires, noting that they are based on the enhanced questions used in 2023 as well as the conversation 
prompts used by the committee chairs for their direct interviews of members in 2023. She noted management’s 
recommendation to conduct direct interviews of committee members every two years, rather than every year. 
Second, Ms. Perotti reviewed management’s recommendation to conduct the annual Board committee mandate 
review after the annual evaluation process has completed, so that any feedback on the mandates may be considered 
at that time. After discussion, and upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the Board 
Committee and Board of Trustees annual evaluation surveys and authorized their distribution.  
 
Annual Conflict of Interest and Independence Report 
Ms. Perotti reviewed the annual conflict of interest and independence report, noting the materials included in the 
advance agenda package. She reported that each NERC trustee, officer, key employee, and employee is in compliance 
with all applicable conflict of interest and independence requirements, no modifications are necessary to NERC’s 
policies is required at this time, and NERC’s current Board meets all qualifications under applicable laws. 
 
Standards Committee Charter Proposed Amendments 
Ms. Perotti reviewed the proposed revisions to the Standards Committee charter, noting that the Standards 
Committee developed these revisions to address recommendations of the Standards Process Stakeholder 
Engagement Group to improve how the Standards Committee facilities the efficient administration of the standards 
process. After discussion, and upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the revised Standards 
Committee charter and recommended it to the Board for approval.  
 
Reliability and Security Technical Committee Charter Proposed Amendments 
Ms. Castaneda reviewed the proposed revisions to the Reliability and Security Technical Committee charter, noting 
that the revisions reflect administrative improvements and clarifications based on lessons learned over the last two 
years. After discussion, and upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the revised Reliability 
and Security Technical Committee charter and recommended it to the Board for approval.  
 
People and Culture 
Ms. Saunders provided the People and Culture update, highlighting the evolution of total rewards at NERC. Ms. 
Saunders covered the highlights of offering differentiators such as, hybrid work, diversity, equity, and inclusion, 
development and career opportunities, employee resource groups, and mental health resources in NERC’s total 
rewards package for employees.  
 



 

Draft Minutes – CGHRC Open Meeting – February 14, 2024 3 

Adjournment 
There being no further business, and upon motion duly made and seconded, the meeting was adjourned.  
 
Submitted by, 

 
Sônia Rocha 
Corporate Secretary 



   
Agenda Item 2 

Corporate Governance and Human Resources Committee 
Open Meeting  

May 8, 2024 
 
 

Board of Trustees Annual Evaluation Results 
 
Action 
Review 
 
Background 
Board of Trustees Self-Evaluation Process 
The Board self-evaluation and Members Representative Committee (MRC) effectiveness survey 
of the Board annually assesses and monitors the performance and effectiveness of the Board. 
Below is the recommended evaluation process for 2024, consistent with the new qualitative 
framework adopted in 2023: 

• The Board self-evaluation and MRC effectiveness survey of the Board was reviewed and 
accepted at the first quarter CGHRC open meeting.  

• Immediately following the CGHRC open meeting, the survey was released through 
Diligent Boardbooks with a defined deadline for submission of responses. 

• NERC Staff consolidated the responses into a thematic summary. The Chair of the CGHRC 
and the Board Chair will lead a discussion of the feedback at the CGHRC’s second quarter 
closed meeting. The CGHRC and Board Chair will also provide a high-level summary of the 
results at the CGHRC’s second quarter open meeting. 

 
Summary 
In an effort to fully understand what is working and what areas need improvement, the 
evaluation moved away from numerical ranking and is designed to elicit more substantive 
narrative, free-form responses.     
  
The Board of Trustees Annual Self-Evaluation examined the following questions: 

• Board Engagement — Please provide your perspective on the level and quality of 
engagement of the Board as a whole, and the quality of the Board discussions you have 
observed.  

• Board Oversight Responsibilities — Please provide your perspective on the extent to 
which the Board is focused on the most important issues affecting the organization and 
whether the existing mechanisms, including Board Committee structures, meeting 
cadence and agenda topics, and existing management reporting tools provide 
appropriate visibility and information. 

• Board Skills and Structure — Please provide your perspective on the Trustee selection 
process and level of diversity of thought and skills represented in the Board, and how well 
these skills enable the Board to appropriately guide the organization toward its mission. 

• Board Management — Please provide your perspective on the content of the meeting 
agendas and agenda packages, the quality of the materials and presentations, and the 
procedures for running the meetings, as well as the productivity of the meetings 
themselves. 



• Overall — Is there one thing that the Board is doing exceptionally well? One thing that 
requires immediate improvement.   In looking at NERC’s strategy and the challenges 
facing the industry:  What advice/suggestions do you have?  Please provide any 
suggestions and other relevant perspectives not covered in the questions above.  

 
The Corporate Governance and Human Resources Committee Chair and Board Chair will review 
the Board of Trustees self-evaluation results and determine any items for focus or action.  



   
Agenda Item 3a 

Corporate Governance and Human Resources 
Committee Meeting 

May 8, 2024 
 

 
People and Culture  

 
Action 
Update 
 
Background 
This document serves to provide a detailed update on the ongoing evolution of NERC's total 
rewards package to help attract, engage, and retain top talent in a pivotal stage in the 
electricity industry.  
 
Summary 
NERC is continuing to execute against its long-term strategic people and culture plan with a 
focus on total rewards. In the traditional sense, core rewards such as cash compensation, 
medical and dental benefits, retirement planning, career opportunities and paid time off were 
expected as part of a total rewards package. 
 
Over the past decade, organizations have looked to add benefits that are differentiators in the 
market to attract, engage and retain top talent. An increasingly important and evolving 
differentiator is connection and culture in a post-pandemic environment.  
 
NERC has taken a hybrid approach to how we work, and we are bringing people together for 
purposeful meetings to collaborate, connect and build culture among the NERC team and with 
stakeholders. This area is one of continuous improvement as we are acting on the feedback 
provided by NERC staff, the ERO Enterprise, and stakeholders to help shape and define 
connection and culture.  



RELIABILITY | RESILIENCE | SECURITY

People and Culture Update

Liz Saunders - Vice President, People and Culture
Corporate Governance and Human Resources Committee Meeting
May 8, 2024



RELIABILITY | RESILIENCE | SECURITY2

Total Rewards

Total 
Rewards

Medical & 
Dental 

Benefits
Career 

Opportunities

Cash 
Compensation

Retirement
Planning

Paid 
Time Off

Hybrid Work

Mental HealthNERC 
Culture

DE&I
Developmental 
Opportunities



RELIABILITY | RESILIENCE | SECURITY3


	CGHRC Agenda May 9 2024
	DRAFT Minutes - CGHRC Open Meeting - February 14 2024
	Agenda Item 2 - Board of Trustees Annual Evaluation Results
	Agenda Item 3 - People and Culture
	Attachment 1 - People and Culture




